
 

Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
 
Monday, September 24, 2012 
7:00 p.m., Council Chambers 
 

                            City of South Haven 
 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
2. Roll Call 
 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 
4. Approval of Minutes – August 27, 2012 
 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 
NEW BUSINESS –Variance Requests 

6. Dennis and Jari Kral, 127 Clinton, request a rear yard pool setback variance. The ordinance 
requires pools to be ten (10) feet from rear property lines (Section 1725-2). The applicant is 
asking to install a pool six (6) feet from the rear lot line instead of the required ten (10) feet. 
The parcel number for the property is 80-53-033-015-00. 

 
7. Member Comments 
 
8. Adjourn 
 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Linda Anderson 
Zoning Administrator 
 

South Haven City Hall is barrier free and the City of South Haven will provide the necessary 
reasonable auxiliary aids and services for persons with disabilities, such as signers for the 
hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting to 
individuals with disabilities at the meeting upon seven (7) days notice to the South Haven City 
Hall.    
 

 
 
September 24, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
1 of 18



Zoning Board of Appeals 
 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 
Monday, August 27, 2012 
7:00 p.m., Council Chambers 
 

                            City of South Haven 
 
 
 

1. Call to Order by Ingersoll at 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Roll Call 
 

Present:  Apotheker, Henry, Lewis, Paull, Wheeler, Wittkop, Ingersoll 
Absent:   None  

 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion by Wittkop, second by Henry to approve the August 27, 2012 Agenda as presented.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
4. Approval of Minutes – July 23, 2012 
 

Motion by Henry, second by Apotheker to approve the July 23, 2012 regular meeting 
minutes as written.  
 
All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 

None at this time. 
 
NEW BUSINESS –Variance Requests 
 
6. Kal-Haven Bikes, Inc., (represented by David Nixon), 1073 E. Wells Street, request an 

interpretation of two (2) zoning ordinance sections. The sections in question are 
found in Article XVII General Provisions, Section 1716, Access Standards and involve 
the definition of a private road as used in the city and the right of access through 
residential neighborhoods to nonresidential uses. 

 
Anderson introduced the application for interpretations of the Zoning Ordinance, noting that 
when a Zoning Ordinance interpretation is requested, the board is not looking at this specific 
piece of property. This interpretation will be in relation to the entire City now or in the time to 
come.  

 1

 
 
September 24, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
2 of 18



August  27, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

DRAFT 
 

2

 
 Attorney Steve McKown, Allegan, Michigan, representing David Nixon noted that the City 

Attorney has issued an opinion which McKown has not seen due to confidentiality. McKown 
explained that the first question has to do with the easement issue. The definition of “Right-
of-Way” from the city’s Zoning Ordinance is: A street, alley, or other thoroughfare or 
easement permanently established for passage of persons, vehicles, or the location of 
utilities. The right-of-way is delineated by legally established lines or boundaries. McKown 
pointed out that the Van Buren County Circuit Court has ruled that this is a definition of 
private road several times in the past. The title holder can only be responsible if the 
titleholder also uses the Right of Way for passage. Owner, defined in the Zoning Ordinance 
fairly broadly includes tenants, lessees, holders of receiverships and anyone who has 
control over property. McKown stated that everyone that uses this road has a slice of use; 
they have the right to use it, but not to do anything else with it. Any easement that looks like 
this one would fit the same analysis but he thinks the board does need to look at this 
particular piece of property to determine this interpretation. The decision regarding this 
property will also affect the other property owners. 
 
Addressing the second question, Attorney McKown spoke to the meaning of Zoning 
Ordinance Section 1716.2 which states: Nonresidential Access - No nonresidential access 
shall cross residentially-zoned property. McKown noted that this property has been in 
ownership of the current corporation since 1995, and the predecessor corporation, also in 
Mr. Nixon’s ownership, prior to that. McKown requested that the Zoning Board of Appeals 
look at the Zoning Ordinance as it is drafted much as a court would. The Zoning Ordinance 
should not be interpreted in a way that would prevent an owner from using his or her 
property. That would be a taking. Is there another way to get to the property? The Kal-
Haven trail is adjacent to the property on the south. McKown used a survey map to illustrate 
where the property, easement/private drive, Kal-Haven Trail and Black River are in 
relationship to each other. The Department of Natural Resources did give limited use to 
Nixon’s company to cross that trail. It is a very limited use and must yield to allow users of 
the trail to pass.  
 
McKown concluded by saying that the Zoning Board has the City Attorney’s opinion and 
McKown just wanted to let the Authority know what his client’s position is. McKown noted 
that Nixon’s property is zoned commercial and taxed commercial. 
 
Ingersoll called for questions and comments from the board. 
 
Lewis asked if the current zoning was in force at the time Mr. Nixon acquired this property. 
McKown said the commercial zoning was in place for many years before Nixon purchased 
the property, while the change regarding use changed after Nixon acquired the property. 
Lewis asked if the other adjacent property owners have an easement. McKown said there 
are several court judgments stating the easements are for the use of those property owners 
along that easement.  
 
Ingersoll asked if the easement were used for commercial use, would the residential 
property owners still be able to use the easement. McKown stated, “Yes, that is a basic 
property right”.  
 
No further comments at this time. 

 
 
September 24, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
3 of 18



 

Ken Lane, Clark Hill, City Attorney, explained that the request before the Zoning Board of 
Appeals tonight is for a Zoning Ordinance interpretation. This is specifically to look at and 
respond to the questions posed by the applicant. Michigan law says when the Zoning Board 
of Appeals is interpreting the Zoning Ordinance they must be very clear and cannot change 
or remove words.  
 
Lane noted that the easement at issue, and the scope, is rather broad. It allows for ingress 
and egress for pedestrian and vehicular access and utilities. Looking at that language we 
can view this request from that broadly worded easement. Whether this is a private road, 
looking at the Zoning Ordinance, there is a definition for a private road, alley, right-of-way 
and alley. The definition for right-of-way and street both include the word “easement”. You 
could say because the word easement is not in the definition of the private road that this 
particular easement meets the definition of a private road. So looking at this easement and 
the definition of the private road, we believe this easement meets the criteria. 
 
Lane explained the answer to the second question as clear and unambiguous: Section 
1716.2 Nonresidential Access - No nonresidential access shall cross residentially-zoned 
property. The Zoning Board of Appeals does not have the legal authority to change the 
Zoning Ordinance other than to read it and interpret it as it is written. Lane said he does not 
say this could be a taking as the applicant could ask for variances or other remedies before 
it could be considered a taking. There are some gray areas in the Zoning Ordinance that a 
court might agree that the easement is a private road. The second question says what it 
says and that is all we can allow it to say.  
 
The third question is whether the easement is the only means of accessibility for the 
applicant’s property. That is not a question of interpretation. 
 
Ingersoll understands the first question with the easement in this situation but asked 
whether this interpretation could be limited to this particular case since not all easement 
situations will be the same. Lane thinks the Zoning Board could since there are already two 
court cases and rulings; this will likely be a limited decision. 
 
Ingersoll called for audience comments or questions. There were none at this time. 
 
Ingersoll asked that the board split these questions up into the three separate issues and 
consider each one individually.  
 
Interpretation #1. Lewis believes this easement does meet the criteria to be a private road. 
Lewis noted there are several private roads in town that have these same easements within 
them. Ingersoll said in this particular situation the easement fits the criteria of a private road. 
Henry concurred, looking at the definition as provided: Private Road: A private way or 
means of approach to provide access to two (2) or more abutting lots, and which is 
constructed and maintained by the owner or owners and is not dedicated for general public 
use and the easement has been there for many years.  
 
Motion by Henry that this particular easement agreement complies with the definition of a 
private road and the standards for a private road provided it meets all other standards and 
ordinances. Second by Wheeler.  
 

August  27, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

3

DRAFT 
 

 
 
September 24, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
4 of 18



August  27, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

DRAFT 
 

4

A roll call vote was taken. 
 
Ayes: Henry, Lewis, Paull, Wheeler, Wittkop, Apotheker, Ingersoll. 
Nays: None 
Motion carried.  

Interpretation #2. Right of access for commercial use.  

Lewis said this is cut-and-dried. Wittkop concurred that there really is not anything the 
Zoning Board can do about it. 

Motion by Wittkop, second by Lewis to deny the request for an extended interpretation of the 
regulation for commercial use of the easement over residential property due to the plain and 
unambiguous wording in the Zoning Ordinance and the fact that the zoning board of appeals 
lacks authority to add text to the zoning ordinance.  

A roll call vote was taken. 

Ayes: Lewis, Paull, Wheeler, Wittkop, Apotheker, Henry, Ingersoll 

Nays: None 

Motion carried. 

Interpretation #3.   

Attorney for applicant noted that since the Zoning Board denied the second issue, the third 
issue does not need to be considered. All agreed. 

7. Deb LaPenna of Kalamazoo, MI requests a front setback variance for property at 64 
Lakeshore Drive. Section 404-1 of the zoning ordinance requires a three (3) foot 
minimum front yard building setback. Ms. La Penna is asking to extend a deck to the 
property line on the north side of the house. The parcel number for the property is 80-
53-805-016-00.  

Mike Parker, 71221 CR 388, Representative of the LaPennas, noted that the LaPennas 
have a concrete wall that was established around their residence. Looking at the survey 
map, this indicates the LaPennas have less than 1’1” from what appears to be a revised 
right-of-way (ROW) line. However, the wall, or the back of the curb, has been there for many 
years; it appears that the revised ROW road plan came in after the fact. They are asking to 
stay within the boundaries of the wall and build a second story deck. Five feet, ten inches to 
the west and a little less than that to the east.  

Ingersoll said it appears that the LaPennas have use of the property all the way to the curb. 
Parker noted that the cottage to the north, which is three stories, probably goes into that 
same radius. Ingersoll asked if we were to grant that encroachment what the next step will 
be. Ingersoll noted that the Zoning Board can only grant a 1’1” variance because they 

 
 
September 24, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
5 of 18



 

cannot give permission all the way to the wall. They could allow something to go from the 
edge of the house to the curved line, or property lines but not into the ROW.  

Parker said there have been precedents set all along Lakeshore because last year there 
was an encroachment that went right to the wall. Ingersoll said you need to approach the 
City and work out some arrangements. That is City property and we as the Zoning Board of 
Appeals cannot grant you that variance.  

Anderson said the way the property is set up right now the applicant has about 1’1” of 
private property to the road right-of-way. The Zoning Board of Appeals cannot grant 
anything on public property and the City Council cannot grant a license agreement to extend 
into the ROW unless the Zoning Board of Appeals grants this request.  

Henry asked about the patio to the west that borders up to the cement wall. Parker said it 
has been there for a little over a year. Parker noted he cantilevered the patio over the wall. 
Paull asked Anderson if the City approved this. Anderson said if so, it was before she 
worked here. Ingersoll stated that City Council did that and Paull said it should not have 
done it because the Zoning Board of Appeals was not consulted. Parker said it looks like at 
one time there was a concrete wall barrier at almost every cottage along Lake Shore.  

Anderson received correspondence from the owner of 64 Kalamazoo Avenue north of the 
LaPenna property. Fears her taxes will go up when the view goes down.  

Daniel Liehr, 668 Kalamazoo, year round resident, stated that granting this variance will cut 
off the view from his home which will adversely affect his property value.   

Parker pointed out several details regarding the views from the neighboring properties and 
the effect of LaPenna’s request.  

Paull said the presenter has already pointed out several issues erroneously handled that 
were approved in the past. Paull said until the City as an entity decides what it wants to do 
with Monroe Park; the Zoning Board should follow the ordinance, and perhaps request an 
overlay zone or something similar in the near future. Each time we allow another home to 
build inconsistently with the Zoning Ordinance, it changes things. The Zoning Board needs 
to sit down and study the area; in an area this congested, it is not appropriate to consider 
these requests individually. Every variance affects many other properties.  

Wittkop said it is a unique area and when the Zoning Ordinance was set up there were 
parameters set and now everyone wants to change those parameters; we are wiping out the 
ordinance, basically. 

Henry said looking at this parcel, where it is located and the western patio/deck, that it is a 
pretty nice access to Lake Michigan. Henry did not understand the request was for a two-
story deck when he looked at this. Henry understands this variance could be a first step.  

Lewis asked what right the neighbors have that the LaPennas do not have already. 
Apotheker said the wall is the problem. Ingersoll agreed the walls are the problem and he 
finds himself in the unusual position of agreeing with Mr. Paull. Ingersoll noted that the 

August  27, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

5

DRAFT 
 

 
 
September 24, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
6 of 18



August  27, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

DRAFT 
 

6

board met on a similar request recently in this same area. If we continue the granting of zero 
lot line variances, the board would be promoting keeping the status quo which means this 
area needs to be looked at more closely and the whole problem dealt with. Lewis noted that 
one solution could be for the City to vacate this property.        

Motion by Paull to deny the request because 1.) the applicant has not demonstrated unusual 
circumstances, 2.) the applicant is not being denied any rights enjoyed by their neighbors 
and 3.) the setback encroachment problem is of so general a nature in the immediate area 
that the city should consider amending the district regulations. Second by Henry.  

A roll call vote was taken: 

Ayes: Paull, Wheeler, Wittkop, Apotheker, Henry, Lewis, Ingersoll 

Nays: None 

Motion carried.    

8. Todd Johnson, 317 Superior Street, request variances from zoning ordinance 
sections 402 - §2 and 5 in order to construct garage two (2) feet from the west 
property line and to exceed the maximum lot coverage by four (4) percent. The 
parcel number for the property is 80-53-016-014-00.  

Anderson introduced the request noting that she had received a letter from a 
neighbor in support of the request. 

Todd Johnson said he can only fit one car in the garage and will store a car on 
dollies in the other part of the garage. There is a big beautiful tree that he does not 
want to remove. After explaining how the entire neighborhood was surveyed recently 
and all of their property lines were found to be two feet off, he noted that he has a 
two-foot easement for his driveway.  

Ingersoll noted this is a large garage by garage standards and that there are people 
in that area whose structures are right up to the zero lot line. Regarding the lot 
coverage issue, Ingersoll wondered if there any way the Zoning Board can stick to 
just one variance rather than having to do two variances. Johnson said he does not 
think he could get two cars in there if he reduced the size.  

Wittkop asked if he is going to reduce the size of the house to which Johnson said he 
actually plans to remove the one obstructing part of the house within the year so 
access to the garage would be straight in.  

Paull asked what is immediately behind your proposed garage. Johnson responded 
that his neighbor’s back yard fence and the garage would be three feet from that 
fence. Lewis asked if the three feet is measured from the wall or the eave and 
Johnson said it is the eave. Ingersoll noted that the applicant would still have to 
conform to all other codes, such as fire code and building code. Anderson noted the 
building official would require a fire wall if needed. 

 
 
September 24, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
7 of 18



 

Lewis pointed out that the first request is a one foot variance to the wall. Ingersoll 
said the proposed garage should not be a problem where it is located. Lewis said the 
proposed garage is an example of something that is enjoyed by other neighbors and 
reiterated that he would want to have the eave be at least 1’ from the property line.  

Motion by Lewis to approve this variance, since 1.) this is a property right enjoyed by 
others in the area, 2.) the proposed garage will be located in the back of the property 
and does not adversely affect any other property owners, 3.) this is not a self 
imposed hardship and with the condition that the drip edge not less than one foot 
from the property line. Second by Paull.  

A roll call vote was taken: 

Ayes: Wheeler, Wittkop, Apotheker, Henry, Lewis, Paull, Ingersoll 

Nays: None 

Motion carried. 

The ZBA considered the second part of the variance request, which Lewis pointed 
out is not a right that is enjoyed by others. Ingersoll and Paull noted that the board 
does not know that. Lewis said he based that opinion on the map provided. Johnson 
said he has one neighbor with a garage the size of his proposed garage, but the 
neighbor’s house is smaller. Henry said he has no problem with the request. 
Ingersoll said he does not either, considering the overall layout of the property. Lewis 
said that he thinks the proposed garage and lot coverage request is too large. 
Wheeler asked if the issue is whether the applicant should go over the required lot 
coverage at all or what amount the Board should let the applicant go over. Ingersoll 
asked what rationale could be used. 

Motion by Wittkop, second by Henry to grant the variance as requested to allow 
maximum lot coverage of four (4) percent because the request is 1.) not 
unreasonable and 2.) does it cause any negative impact on neighboring properties. 

A roll call vote was taken. 

Ayes: Apotheker, Henry, Paull, Wheeler, Wittkop, Ingersoll 

Nay: Lewis 

Motion carried. 

9. Robert and Maryanne Schultz, 615 Church Street, request a front setback 
variance to allow construction of a covered porch. Section 404-1 of the zoning 
ordinance requires a 25 foot minimum front yard building setback. The 
applicant is asking to extend the porch to within 12.5 feet from the street right-
of-way.  The parcel number for the property is 80-53-767-012-00. 

August  27, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

7

DRAFT 
 

 
 
September 24, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
8 of 18



August  27, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

DRAFT 
 

8

Anderson gave an overview of the request noting that the property owner is doing 
extensive renovations to the house; the house is non-conforming and a covered 
porch will bring him to 12.5’ from the edge of the road right-of-way. The only place 
where a variance is required is the front. Additions to the side of the house comply 
with zoning regulations. The current required setback is 25’. This is a dimensional 
variance. 

Bob Schultz, 615 Church Street explained that the existing concrete steps end at 9’4” 
and his request is to add an 8’ porch which will actually be moving back 1’4” from 
where the last existing concrete step is. Ingersoll asked if the concrete steps are 
covered and Schultz said, “No, they are not covered; never were”.  

Paull asked if he could describe the setbacks along Church Street. Schultz said there 
is an empty lot on the east side of his property, owned by the neighbor who owns the 
next house to the east. On the west side is the Jewish Synagogue and they are 
looking forward to the improvements. The neighbor’s setback is probably similar to 
Schultz’s.  

Anderson said the house on the other side of the vacant lot is about the same as 
Schultz’s and on the other side of the street there are very small front yards. Ingersoll 
said he would like to find some justification for granting a variance. Wittkop said the 
porch would enhance that house.  

Henry questioned the applicant having a lot of materials being off-loaded this 
morning to which Schultz noted that he had gotten some materials on sale.  

If granted the variance, the applicant stated he would end up with a 12’6” front yard. 

Ingersoll asked if the synagogue is commercial to which Anderson responded that 
Schultz’s property is located right off a commercial corridor and the synagogue was 
zoned commercial. Wittkop pointed out that the board would not be granting the 
applicant that much because of the location of the existing concrete step. Ingersoll 
said visually he will be getting more front yard and the porch would be enhancement 
to the house and the neighborhood, keeping in character with other houses in close 
proximity.  

Lewis said he likes to hang his hat on exceptional circumstances and the applicant 
noted no exceptional circumstances in his application. Paull said the houses across 
the street come to the front lot line.  

Anderson suggested putting the standards in the motion; 1.) this will not be 
detrimental to the neighborhood, 2.) there is no financial motive and 3.) the unusual 
circumstance is that the house is already close to the road. The owner did not build it 
that way and the house has been at that location for several years. It was already a 
non-conforming house, and while he is increasing the nonconformity it is an unusual 
situation. 

 
 
September 24, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
9 of 18



 

August  27, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 

DRAFT 
 

9

Motion by Apotheker to grant the variance to extend a porch to twelve-and-a-half feet 
(12.5’) of the street right-of-way considering 1.) this will not be detrimental to the 
neighborhood, 2.) there is no financial motive and 3.) the unusual circumstance is 
that the house is already close to the road. The owner did not build it that way and 
the house has been at that location for several years. Second by Paull. 

A roll call vote was taken. 

Ayes: Henry, Lewis, Paull, Wheeler, Wittkop, Apotheker, Ingersoll 

Nays: None 

Motion carried. 

 
10. Member Comments 
 

None at this time. 
 
11. Adjourn 
 

 Motion by Wittkop, second by Lewis to adjourn at 8:18 p.m.  
 
 All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
Marsha Ransom 
Recording Secretary 
 

 
 
September 24, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
10 of 18



Zoning Board of Appeals Staff Report 

 
Agenda Item #6 

Kral Variance Request 
 

 
City of South Haven 

 
 

Background Information:  
 
Dennis and Jari Kral, 127 Clinton, request a rear yard pool setback variance. The ordinance 
requires pools to be ten (10) feet from rear property lines (Section 1725-2) and four (4) feet from 
any exterior building wall of the house. The applicant is asking to install a pool six (6) feet from 
the rear lot line instead of the required ten (10) feet.  The pool will also be six (6) feet from the 
exterior house wall. There is currently room available to meet the zoning requirements but the 
applicant is also planning to construct a 21’x22’ attached garage in the rear yard. This will cause 
the pool to encroach into the required rear yard. 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommends that the ZBA review all documents, listen to neighbor comments and 
determine whether or not this request meets the standards of Zoning Ordinance Section 2205.  
 
Support Material: 
 
Completed Application 
Aerial photo of neighborhood  
Staff Findings of Fact 

 
 
September 24, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
11 of 18



ZONING VARIANCE REQUEST
 
CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN
 
BUILDING DEPARTMENT
 

539 PHOENIX STREET, SOUTH HAVEN, MICHIGAN 49090
 
FOR INFORMATION CALL 269-637-0760
 

NOTE: Incomplete applications will not be processed. A fee of $300 will be required at
 
the time the application is submitted.
 

Name: DCHAs .,L SAIeL Kl\flL Date: 9- 'I-/~ 
'7tJS

Address: /q?7 C!. L:TfiI/o// Phone: !fk? -t.5~~ 

Address of / . / Present ZoninQn ) Pc 
Property in Question: /dZ C!-LJAlTCJN of Property: ~. 

Name of Property Owner(s): j)~NIV'!5 + 51T~2 I0eFfL. 
Present Zoning of Neighboring Properties to the: 

North _ South _ East _ VVest ___ 

VVhich Sections of the South Haven Zoning Ordinance are you requesting a variance from? 
Please indicate Section and Paragraph numbers. (City staff will help determine which 
variance(s) are required). 

Section(s): /7;), s-- 2

Under Article XXII, Section 2205 of the South Haven Zoning Ordinance, the Zoning Board of 
Appeals may not grant a variance from the regulations within the Ordinance unless certain 
conditions exist. No variance in the provisions of this Ordinance shall be authorized unless the 
Board finds, from reasonable evidence, that all of the following standards have been met: 

1. Such variance will not be detrimental to adjacent property and the surrounding 

neighborhood. (!LJ,,{'~€cr-_ ffl-S a.. re S,dMrha..- I ac ce sSor y 

2. Such variance will not impair the intent and purpose of this Ordinance. 

(!O,e~EeT- J+ /;JJ// /lr:.T 

3. Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions apply to the property in 
question or to the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to other 
properties in the same zoning district. Such circumstances shall create a practical 
difficulty because of unique circumstances or physical conditions such as narrowness, 
shallowness, shape or topography of the property involved, or to the intended use of the 
property. See Section 2204(2). 

LD ~GY\ 
,n frc>po~~ 

6-t ~{l Zt-
) 

C 

Lej-l sfJn 4 
JU\,Ul--L 

Cl-f-~ {pc J:lhLM- d f OZ5 ( 
Rev. 2/04 

 
 
September 24, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
12 of 18



4. Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a substantial property right 
similar to that possessed by other properties in the same zoning district and in the vicinity. The 
possibility of increased financial return shall not of itself be deemed sufficient to warrant a 
variance. 

I h,~( e. {}Lre ~ef (fUQ (~ ) f\
 

j'he. ne'Sk.bo( k.O() d a,N'J
 
~ IFt ne.-IS hbor J1(JccLs
 

5. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of said 
property, for which the variance is sought, is not of so general or recurrent a nature as to make 
reasonably practicable the formulation of a general regulation for such conditions or situation. 

6. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended use of said 
property, for which the variance is sought, shall not be the result of actions of the property 
owner. In other words, the problem shall not be self-created. 

CorJ{~~lb-J\ ere ~+ CLNJ 
re 1u-Wt. a L{;vrcC/[ ~a--ca-~ 

n\CLM!~{Hy 
7. That strict compliance with area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or density would 
unreasonably prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted purpose, or 
would render conformity unnecessarily burdensome. 

8. That the variance requested is the minimum amount necessary to overcome the 
inequality inherent in the particular property or mitigate the hardship. CtJ/C

lie ~EC!..r-
e-€../~6lJ ( /S ~~ aL 

ff~(c:Jr ~ ic;~ fr6y>V 
9. That the variance will relate only to property under the control of the applicant (£tt)~If~c:-r 

2 

 
 
September 24, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
13 of 18



I hereby give permission for the members of the Zoning Board of Appeals and City Staff to 
access and inspect the property in question for the purpose of gathering information to make an 
informed decision on this varia ce request. 

9- tf-/~ 
Date 

THE INFORMATION CONTAINED WITHIN THIS APPLICATION IS TRUE TO THE BEST OF 
MY KNOWLEDGE AND SUBMITTED TO THE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS FOR THEIR 
REVIEW. I REALIZE THAT ANY INFORMATION THAT I SUPPLY THAT IS NOT CORRECT 
COULD VOID ANY DECISION BY THE BOARD. I ALSO ACKNOWLEDGE THAT IF THE 
VARIANCE IS GRANTED BY THE BOARD, THE WORK WITHIN THE REQUEST MUST BE 
CARRIED OUT WITHIN ONE YEAR OF THE PUBLIC HEARING OR THE VARIANCE 
BECOMES NULL AND VOID. 

~dcfu. elL/-1M 
Applicant Signature Date 

3 

 
 
September 24, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
14 of 18



0610112012 15:02 toldWelI Banl<er Heber-Seiler (F~6373144 
I.('T·15. SlOCK 33,OF THE VILLAGE (NOW CITY) OF SOUTH HAVEN ACCORDING TO THE RECORDED ~~~002 
THEREOF', AS RECORDED IN USER H PAGE 2f!J7. VAN BUREN comiTY RECORDS, . 

RE: 121 CLINTON ST~EET 

N 
, .............
,
 

T 

13 If 
.~, 

" 
$,0':11 
CI' 

l'!!'JiC! --
lift wtt?!'T 
Of lANe. 

i 
FENC.f-~ 

W!&T 
IAN!' 

704 l!U~OAQWAY SOUTH HAV!:N. MICHIGAN 4iiO£l!O 
0,....10£: lit.,.> sa?-} \In P'Al<: 1aGei lS:J?-ISQ7 

A PIVI610N 0,. l\IIITCHl:£Ll-SURVl1ZY$, tNC. 

MITCHELL & MORSE LAND SURVEYING-

CL.12NT CObOWELL SANKER WEBERSEJLl;R 
0", r=: ._~~·2()·aOO5 ._ JOD No. 05-640 SHlutT ......LOlt---.c:

DY/G. e'i'._~~H OWG, CK__ Olt5(;. ~y _DltScC. CK __ 

ailING IN nut NW tl4 S~C'TION 10 ,T ._~•.1...!...- ,R \7 W 

~OU"fH t!.,AVJEl't (Cn1'..L:rwp. .'!.':&N eURI£!!_CO., MICHIGAN 

THI! 1UfoVlt iIIU!hf1tY C¢!>fI'I.UI:III Wl'ffl pue\.i<;! ...m 13l1i 01" • 
A<:;rltS8 Of' MIC!tllMN I"!JIlI.Ia. ",c:r$ Of' 19f1 ~"III "'1'-.«" 
PVt/l.IC A,.m' fi& I gl" 1 g91 .HOl.lI.O j)lt eW.OucO TO eo. 

;',NY I'FtOI".ftTY CONVI!VAI(;l1 IHilZll !'lOT VIOI....Tli 1"tf,.l' A 

LEGEND 
f'0"I<0 IftON' 0 
111:" II..... • 
fAO"'''M.''''' 
RCOO,.,:I,1!l0 

M....V.eo 

-
-

(f) 
A 

M 

1;)1&1&1:1«0 0 

Gi)NJl'I'V"".:O~' ti 

 
 
September 24, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
15 of 18



 
 
September 24, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
16 of 18



STAFF FINDINGS OF FACT 
CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
 
DATE:  September 24, 2012 
ADDRESS:  127 Clinton Street 
ZONING DISTRICT:  R-1A Residential 
LOT DIMENSIONS:  50x120 
LOT AREA:  6000 square feet 
LOT COVERAGE:  25% current; 27% proposed (incl. new garage) 
REQUIRED SETBACKS:  Rear – 25 feet; 10 feet for pool 
EXISTING SETBACKS:  Rear – 46 feet 
PROPOSED SETBACKS:  Rear – 25 feet for garage; 6 feet for pool 
VARIANCE REQUEST:  Dennis and Jari Kral, 127 Clinton, request a rear yard pool 
setback variance. The ordinance requires pools to be ten (10) feet from rear property 
lines (Section 1725-2). The applicant is asking to install a pool six (6) feet from the rear 
lot line instead of the required ten (10) feet. There is currently room available to meet the 
zoning requirements but the applicant is also planning to construct a 21’x22’ garage in 
the rear yard. This will cause the pool to encroach into the required rear yard. 
The parcel number for the property is 80-53-033-015-00. 
  
DIMENSIONAL VARIANCE STANDARDS 
City of South Haven Zoning Ordinance Section 2205: 
 
1. Such variance will not be detrimental to adjacent property and the surrounding 
neighborhood.  
This property has residential zoned land on all sides and pools are fairly common 
in the city. The property immediately behind the applicant’s has an accessory 
building near the property line. The ZBA should consider any affected neighbors’ 
comments in making their decision. 
 
2. Such variance will not impair the intent and purpose of this Ordinance. 
It is the intent of the R1A zoning district to preserve the character of the single-
family neighborhoods. The proposed pool is permitted in the zoning district as an 
accessory use but is required to be ten (10) feet from the rear lot line.    
 
3. Exceptional or extraordinary circumstances or conditions apply to the property 
in question or to the intended use of the property that do not apply generally to 
other properties in the same zoning district. Such circumstances shall create a 
practical difficulty because of unique circumstances or physical conditions such 
as narrowness, shallowness, shape or topography of the property involved, or to 
the intended use of the property. See Section 2204(2).  
Staff does not find exceptional or extraordinary conditions as far as lot size or 
configuration.  The proposed garage will be within the setback requirements for 
the zone and will leave 25 feet of open rear yard. With a thirteen-foot pool, 12 feet 
will be available for setback. The pool could be placed closer to the garage if open 
yard remains. Pools need to be at least four (4) feet from an outside building wall 
of the residence. If the pool were moved to the four-foot minimum, the pool would 
only be eight (8) feet from the rear setback and would still require a variance. The 
only non-variance option is to decrease the size of the pool or the garage. 
  

 
 
September 24, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
17 of 18



4. Such variance is necessary for the preservation and enjoyment of a 
substantial property right similar to that possessed by other properties in the 
same zoning district and in the vicinity. The possibility of increased financial 
return shall not of itself be deemed sufficient to warrant a variance. 
Many residences in the city have swimming pools but the ZBA should decide if 
this is a substantial right of the property owners. There does not appear to be any 
financial motive for the improvements the applicant has requested. The applicant 
would construct the pool for personal use. 
 
5. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended 
use of said property, for which the variance is sought, is not of so general or 
recurrent a nature as to make reasonably practicable the formulation of a general 
regulation for such conditions or situation. 
This does not appear to be a recurrent type of variance request in this zoning 
district. Staff does not recommend amending the zoning ordinance to permit a 
decrease in rear setback for pools in the R1A zoning district. It is more prudent to 
consider these requests as they arise. 
  
6. The condition or situation of the specific piece of property or of the intended 
use of said property, for which the variance is sought, shall not be the result of 
actions of the property owner. In other words, the problem shall not be self-created.  
The problem is not self-created except in the sense that the applicant would like a 
pool. 
 
7. That strict compliance with area, setbacks, frontage, height, bulk or density 
would unreasonably prevent the owner from using the property for a permitted 
purpose, or would render conformity unnecessarily burdensome.  
Without the requested variance, the applicant would need to either reduce the size 
of the proposed garage or the pool. Denial would be inconvenient but whether it is 
unnecessarily burdensome is a decision for the ZBA. 
 
 8. That the variance requested is the minimum amount necessary to overcome 
the inequality inherent in the particular property or mitigate the hardship. 
As stated previously, a variance would be required unless the applicant reduces 
the size of the pool or the proposed garage. 
 
9. That the variance will relate only to property under the control of the applicant. 
The variance request only involves the property owned by the applicant. 

 
 
September 24, 2012 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
18 of 18


	09-24-2012 ZBA Agenda pg
	08-27-2012 ZBA Minutes draft
	Minutes pg. 2
	Minutes pg. 3
	Minutes pg. 4
	Minutes pg. 5
	Minutes pg. 6
	Minutes pg. 7
	Minutes pg. 8
	Minutes pg. 9

	#6. 127 Clinton St Variance Request - Staff Report
	Variance Req. pg. 1
	Variance Req. pg.2
	Variance Req. pg. 3
	Survey
	127 clinton - aerial
	Findings pg. 2




